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Mr. Blain Vinson

Chief Operating Officer
Al-Kel Alliance, Inc.
2012 N. Goode Road

Wilmer, TX 75172

Re:  Inthe Matter of Al-Kel Alliance, Inc.
EPA Docket No.: RCRA 06-2012-0926

Dear Mr. Vinson:

Enclosed herein is a Complaint, Compliance Order, and Notice of Opportunity for
Hearing (Complaint) issued to Al-Kel Alliance, Inc. (Al-Kel), located in Wilmer, Texas.
Pursuant to the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) 42 U.S8.C. § 6901 et seq.,
as amended, this Complaint sets forth Al-Kel’s failure to comply with Subtitle C of RCRA
and the regulations promulgated thereunder. These violations were identified during a
Compliance Evaluation Inspection conducted on September 2 and September 6 of 2011.

We would like to call your attention to that part of the Complaint entitled
“Opportunity to Request a Hearing.” Should you request such a hearing, your written
request must be filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk within thirty (30) days of the service
of this Complaint.

You have the right to be represented by your attorney at any stage of these proceedings.
Please be advised that the Consolidated Rules of Practice at 40 C.F.R. 22.8 prohibit unilateral
discussion of the merits of the case with the Regional Administrator, the Regional Judicial
Officer, or the Administrative Law Judge after the issuance of the Complaint.

Whether or not you request a hearing, we invite you to confer informally with the
EPA concerning the Complaint. EPA encourages all parties against whom it takes action to
pursue the possibility of settlement through an informal conference. A request for an informal
conference does not extend the time by which you must request a hearing.

Internet Address (URL) = hitp:/Mwww.epa.gov
Recycled/Recyclable « Printed with Vegstable Ol Based Inks on Recycled Paper (Minlmum 25% Postconsumer)



Re: Al-Kel Alliance, Inc. 2

~ If you have any questions regarding this matier, please contact EPA attorney
Tom Rucki at (214) 665-2759 or EPA enforcement officer Gabriel Salinas at (214) 665-8483.

| _rE _—

Sincerely,

ohn Blevins

Director

Compliance Assurance and
Enforcement Division

Enclosure

ce: Walt James

' James PLLC
The Renaissance
1117 Glade Road; Suite 140
Colleyville, TX 76034



UNITED STATES -
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGION 6
DALLAS, TEXAS

)
IN THE MATTER OF: )

)
AL-KEL ALLIANCE, INC. ) DOCKET NO. RCRA 06-2012-0926
WILMER, TEXAS )

)
RESPONDENT )

)

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT
The Complainant, the Director of the Compliance Assurance and Enforcement Division
of the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), issues this Administrative
Complaint (Complaint) to Al-Kel Alliance, Inc. (Respondent).

STATEMENT OF AUTHORITY

1. This Complaint is issued pursuant o Section 3008(a) of the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act of 1976, as amended (RCRA), 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a) and will be conducted in
-accordance with the provisions of the Administrative Procedures Act, 5 U.S.C. § 551 ef seq.,
and the Consolidated Rules of Practice, codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 22. Section 3008(a) of

| RCRA provides that whenever, on the basis of any information, the Admiﬁistrator of the
EPA determincs that any person has violated or is violating any requirement of Subtitle C
of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6921-6939¢, the Administrator may issue an order assessing a civil
p‘enalty for any past or current violation or requiring compliance, or both. The requirefnents
of Subtitle C include the requirements of the authorized program in a State Which has beeﬁ

authorized to carry out a hazardous waste program under Section 3006 of RCRA, 42 U.5.C.
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§ 6926. When a State obtains such authorization, EPA enforces the State program in lieu of
the federal RCRA regulations in that state.
. On December 26, 1984, the State of Texas received final authorization for its base
RCRA program, and there have been sﬁbséqu_ent authorized revisions to Texas’ program
(49 Fed. Reg. 48,300). .' With the addition of Section 3006(g) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6926(gj,
~ new requirements imposed pursuant to the authority of the Hazardous and Solid Waste
-Amendments of 1984 are immediately applicable in the authorize_q States upon the federal
effective date. The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) is the State
agency designated to maiﬁtain the authorized RCRA program in Texas.
. The Director, Compliance Assurance and Enforcement Division, EPA Region 6, is th¢
person to Whom the authority has been delegated to issue Complaints in the States of
Arkansas, Louisiana, Oklahofna, New Mexico, and Texas.
. Notice of this action was given to-TCEQ as required by Section 3008(a) of RCRA,

42 US.C. § 6928(a).

ALLEGATIONS

. Respondent is a corpo'ration incorporated in and under the laws of the State of Texas and
was authorized to do business in Texas in October 2001. Respondent is a “person” as that
~term is defined in 30 T.A.C. § 3.2(25), Section 1004(15) of RCRA, 42 U.8.C. § 6903(13),
and 740 Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.) § 260.10 and 270.2.

3 Respondent’s Registered Agent for service in the State of Texas is James Edward Alexander,

Jr., 500 N. Willow, Sherman, TX 75090.
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“Owner” is deﬁne.d in 30 T.A.C. § 335.1(108) (40 C.F.R. § 260.10) as “the person who
owns a facility or part of a facility.”
“Opérator” is defined in 30 T.A.C, § 335.1(107) (40 C.F.R. § 260.10) as “the person
responsible for the overall operation of a facility.”

“Owner or operator” is defined in 40 C.F.R. § 270.2 as “the owner or operator of any

" facility or activity subject to regulation under RCRA.”

10.

1.

“Facility” is defined in 30 T.A.C. § 335.1(59)A) (40 C.F.R. § 260.10) as meaning

“all contiguous land, and structures, other appurtenances, and improvements on the land,
used for storing, processing, or disposing of municipal hazardous waste or industrial solid
waste. A facility may consist of several treatment, storage, or disposal operational units
(e.g., one or more landfills, surface impoundments, or combinations of them).”

Rcs?ondent owns and/or operates a container and taﬁk trailer cleaning facility along with all

contiguous land and structures, other appurtenances and improvements at 2012 N. Goode

Road in Wilmer, TX (Facility).

12.

- 13.

14.

The Respondent’s Facility is a “Facility” as that term is defined at 30 T:A.C. § 335.1,

(40 C.F.R. § 260.10).

The Respondent is the “owner” and/or “operator” of the facility identified abov.e, as those
terms are defined in 30 T.A.C. § 335.1(107) - (108) (40 C.F.R. §§ 260.10 and 270.2).

The Facility consists of a 12-acre site operating an Office Building with wash bays

located on either side that are known as the North Bay and South Bay, a Maintenance

| Shop, a Container Granulator, a Waste Water Treatment System, and a Heels Storage

Area. The remaining property has been used to store thousands of containers.




15.

16.
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Respondent is a “Generator” as that term is defined in 30 T.A.C. § 335.1 (40 CFR
§ 260.10). ' |
On Respondent’s Notice of Registration dated January 3, 2008, Respondent is listed as
a Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity Generator as defined in 30 T.A.C. § 335.78

(40 CF.R. § 261.5).

17. Pursuant to 30 T.A.C. § 335.78 (40 C.F.R. §261.5), a generator is a conditionally exempt

18.

19.

- 20.

small quantity generator ina cal_endar month if it generates no more than 100 kilograms of
hazardous waste in that month. | |

On August 16, 2011, through August 20, 2011, EPA Criminal Investigaﬁon Division (CID)
served a criminal search warrant at the Facility. The search warrant included sampling
activities of various drums and totes throughout the site and seizure of records.

Pursuant tol30 T.A.C. § 335.504(3), (4Q CFR.§ 261 21(a)), a solid waste exhibits the
characteristic of ignitability if a representative sample of the waste is a liquid, other than an
aqueous s-lolut-ion containing less than 24 percent alcohol by volume and has flash point less
than 140 degrees Fahrénheit, as determined by a Pensky-Martens Closed Cup Tester, using
the test method specified in ASTM Standard D 93-79 or D 93-80, or a Setaflash Closed Cup
Tester, using the test method specified in ASTM Standard D 3278-78.

Pursuant to 30 T.A.C. § 335.504(3), (40 C.F.R. § 261.22(a)), a solid waste exhibits the

* characteristic of corrosivity if a representative sample of the waste is aqueous and has a pH

less than or equal to 2 or greater than or equal to 12.5, as determined by a pH meter using
Method 9040C in “Test Methods for Evaluating Solid Waste, Physical/Chemical Methods,”

EPA Publication SW-846, as incorporated by reference in § 260.11 of this chapter.




21.

22.

23

24,
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During the EPA CID search warrant, the saxﬁ'p‘ling acti.vities identified 6 (275 gallon) totes
and 7 (55 gallon) drums containing ignitable hazardous waste. The sampling activities also
identified 1 (275 galloﬁ) tote and 7 (55 gallon) drums containing corrosive hazardous waste.
The rﬁateria.ls identified above are each a “hazardous waste,” as that term is defined at
30 T.A.C. § 335.1 (40 C.F.R. § 261.3).
Based on the amount of hazafdous' waste identified above, the Respohdent’s Facility
accumuiated hazardous waste in quantities exceeding 6000 kg and/or accumulated hazardous
waste for more than 180 days (or for more than 270 days if it must transport its waste, or
offer its waste for &ansportatioﬁ, over a distance of 200 miles or more). |
Pursuant to 30 T.A.C. § 335.78(g) (40 CFR § 261.5(g)), in order for hazardous waste
generated by a conditionally exempt small quantity generator in quantities of 100 kilograms

or less of hazardous waste during a calendar month to be excluded from full regulation under

this section, the generator must comply with requirements that include:

a. Section 262.11 of this chapter

b. The conditionally exempt small qﬁantity generator may accumulate hazardous waste
on-site.. If he accumulates at any time 1,000 kilograms or greater of his hazardous
wastes, all of those accumulated wastes are subject to regulation under thq special
prbvisious of part 262 appiicable.. to generators of .greater than 100 kg and less than
1000 kg of hazardous waste in a calendar month as well as the requirements of parts
263 through 268, and parts 270 and 124 of this chapter, and the applicable
notification requirements of section 3010 of RCRA. The time. peripd of § 262.34(d)

' for accumulation of wastes on-site begins for a cénditionally exempt small quantity

generator when the accumulated wastes equal or exceed 1000 kilograms.
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¢. A conditionally exempt small quantity genérator may either treat or dispose of his

hazardous waste in an on-site facility or ensure delivery to an off-site treatment,

storage or disposal facility, either of which, if located in the U.S., is:

1.
ii.

- il

iv.

vi.

vii.

Permitted under part 270 of this chapter;
In interim status under parts 270 and 265 of this éhapter;
Au‘;horized to m;mage hazardous waste by a State with a hazardous waste
maﬁagément program approved under part 271 of this chapter;
Permitted, licensed, or registered by a State to manage municipal solid
waste and, if managed in a municipal solid waste landfill, ié subject to
Part 258 of this chapter;
Permitte-d, licensed, or registered by a State to manage non-municipal
non-hazardous waste and, if managed in a non—municipai non-hazardous
waste disposal unit after J anuary I, 1998, is subject to the requiréments in
§§ 257.5 through 257.30 of this chaptef; or
A facility which:
1. Beneficially uses or reuses, of legitimately recycles or re_claims its
waste; or
2. Treats its waste prior to beneficial use or reuse, or legitimate
recycling or reclamation; or
For universal waste managed under part 273 of this chapter, a universal
waste handler or destinatiqn_ facility subjeét to Fhe requirements of part

273 of this chapter.



25.

26.

27,

28

29.
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Respondent’s Facility is an operator of a storage facility and is sﬁbj ect to the s‘pe.cial
provisions of part 262 applicable to génerators of greater than 100 kg and less than 1000 kg
of hazardous waste in a calendar month as well as the requirements of parts 263 through 268,
and parts 270 and 124 of the Code of Federal Regulations, and the applicable notification
requirements of RCRA.
Pursuant to RCRA 3007(a), 42 U.S.C. § 6927(a), on September 2 and September 6, 2011,
EPA’s representatives conducted a Compliance Evaluation Inspection (Inépection) at
Respondent’s Faeility. | ‘_
At the time of the Inspection, the Facility was conducting a major clean-up operation to
process thousands of containers (totes/drums) holding various types of wastes and residuals
such as paint related wastes and oil field chemicals which had been accumulating for several
years.
During the Inspection, a review of Respondent’s records was conducted to ascertain
Respondent’s compliance with the record keeping requiréments under 30 T.A.C. Chapter 335
and 40 C.FR. Part 262. The Facility.claimed that most documentation was seized by EPA
CID Investigators. |

Respondent stated during the Inspection that all the wastes identified for sampling by EPA

~ CID had not been shipped off-site'.

30.

During the Inspection, the Facility representatives informed EPA representativesithat

the storage areas were not scheduled for inspection on a weekly basis. The Facility

representative stated that Facility personnel should have noticed something was wrong

during the normal course of a workday.



31.

32.

- 33,

34,

35.

36.
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During both the EPA CID search warrant and Inspection, EPA representatives observed
and photographed co.ntainers which were not labeled with the words “Hazardous Waste” |
and were not marked with the date upon which accumulation of hazardous wastes began.
During the Inspection, EPA representatives did not observe any spill control equipment or
decontamination equipment.
During the Inspection, the Facility representative could not verify information regarding
the testing and maintenance of facility communications or alarm systems, fire prot‘ection'
equipment, spill control equipment, and decontamination equipment to assure its proper
operation in time of emergency.

During the Inspection, EPA representatives did not observe an internal alarm or emergency

‘communication device immediately accessible to personnel involved with handling

hazardous waste.

During the Inspectioﬁ, EPA representatives observed insufficient aisle space at the Facility.
During the Inspection, the Facility had made arrangements with the local fire department,
but had not made arrangements with other local authorities, emergency responders, and
medical service providers to familiarize them with the characteristics of the facilities, any.

potential dangers inherent in hazardous waste management operations, or the types of

~ injuries that could be incurred by employees in these types of operations.

37.

38.

During the Inspection, the Facility representative did not provide any information regarding a
Contingency Plan and Emergency Procedures. |

Pursuant to 30 T.A.C. § 335.62 (40 C.F.R. § 262.11(c)), any person who generates a solid
waste as defined in 46 C.F.R. § 260.10 must determine if that waste is a hazardous waste

either by applying the required test method or by applying its knowledge of the hazardous

characteristics of the waste in light of the materials or the process used.
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40.
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Pursuant to 30 T.A.C. § 335.1 (40 CFR §261.2), a solid waste is any discarded material that
is not excluded under § 261.4(a) or that is not excluded by a variance granted under
§§ 260.30 and 260.31 or that is not excluded by a non-waste determination under
§§ 260.30 and 260.34. . |
Dufing the Inspection, the Facility representative stated that the Facility accepts RCRA
empty totes and drums containing residuals. such as paint related wastes and oil field
chemical wastes. |

These containers are staged to drain residuals out, and if they cannot be drained, the

Facility’s standard practice was to cut the containers in half so that the residuals can be

42.

43,

44

45,

scraped out. If necessary, the containers may be sent to the North Bay to be power washed
with hot water or cleaned with caustic.
The residuals that are removed from the containers by draining and scraping are consolidated

into totes and drums until full and then moved to the Heels Storage Area.

'The sampling activities conducted by EPA CID described above were representative of the |

consolidated wastes in the containers described herein.

When Respondent consolidated wastes, it generated a new waste, which classifies it as a
“Generator” as that term is defined in 30 T.A.C. § 335.1 (40 C.F.R. § 260.10). |

The Facility representatives stated that, prior to transporting off-site, the Wastes in the
cqnsolidate_d containers in the Heels Storage Area are field tested by

Rineco/TransEnvironmental Services to determine proper shipping according to Department

of Transportation standards.
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47.

48.

49.

50,

._.51.

52.

53.
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During the Inspection, the Facility representatives stated that the containers on-site were
being field tested by TransEnvironmental Services for flammability and corrosivity.
Flammability was being determined by using a PID meter, using a reading on the meter
of 256 or greater as being flammable. Corrosivity was being determined by conducting a
pH paper litmus test.
Facility representatives stated that the analytipal testing performed on these wastes are not an
approved RCRA method found in 40 C.F.R. Part 261 Subpart C.
The Facility also operates container and tank trailer wash out bays known as the North Bay
and the South Bay that generate waste waters.
The Nérth and South Bays use hot water, steam, and caustic to wash out containers with
fesiduals that were unable to be removed by draining or scraping. These bays are also used
to wash out their own emptied tank trailers that transported materials such as oil field
chemicals known as “Guar” that are used as fracturing fluids.
The waste water generatéd from these wash out bays are sent through a waste water
treatment system that generates four by-products: (1) flocculent cake, (2) filter paper,
(3) coconut shell carbon, and (4) bottoms sludge.
The flocculent cake and filter paper is generated from their flocculation unit while the
spent coconut slhell carbon is generated from their coconut shell carbon filtration unit.
The flocculent cake, filter paper, and coconut shell carbon are removed from their respective
units jn which they are generated with no hazardous waste determinations made upon
rembval.
The flocculent cake, filter paper, and coconut shell carbon are aggregated into a dewatering

box prior to Toxicity Characteristic Leaching Procedure (TCLP) testing by ERMI

" Environmental Laboratories.
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54. The Facility also operates a Maintenance Shop that geﬁerates used oil from servicing their
. equipment and vehicles.
55. During the Inspection, EPA representatlves observed and photographed a tote in the
“Maintenance Shop that contained used oil. The tote was not labeled or marked clearly w1th
the words “Used Oil”.

RCRA VIOLATIONS

COUNT I: OPERATING A HAZARDOUS WASTE STORAGE FACILITY WITHOUT
A PERMIT, IN VIOLATION OF RCRA § 3005(a), 30 T.A.C. §§ 335.2 and 335.43, and
40 C.E.R. §§ 270.1 & 270.10

56 Paragraphs 1 through 57 are hereby incorporated by reference.

57. Section 3005(a) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6925(a), 30 T.A.C. §§ 335.2 and 335.43 (40 CF.R.
§§ 270.1(c) & 270.10), prohibits the treatment, storage or disposal of hazardous waste
without a permit or interim status.

58.30 T.A.C. §335.1 (40 C.F.R. § 260.10), defines storage aé the holding of hazardous waste
for a temporary period, ét the end of which the waste is processed, dispose ‘of, recycled, or
stored elsewhere. |

59. Pursuant to 30 T.A.C. § 335.78 (40 CFR §261.5(a)), a generator is a conditionally exempt

* small quantity gencrator in a calendar month if he generates no more than 100 kilograms of
hazardous waste in that month.

* 60. Pursuant to 30 T.A.C. § 335.78(b) (40 CFR § 261.5(b)), except for_ those wastes identified in

paragraphs (e), (f), (g), and (h) of this section, a conditionally exempt small quantity

generator’s hazardous wastes are not subject to regulation under parts 262 through 268,

and parts 270 and 124 of this chapter, and the notification requ1rements of section 3010 of

RCRA, provided the generator complies with the requirements of paragraphs (f), (g), and () -

of this section.
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61. Pursuant to 30 T.A.C. § 335.78(g) (40 CFR 261.5(g)), in-order for haz_ardous waste generated
_ by a conditionally exempt small quantity generator in quantities of 100 kilograms or less of
| hazar_doué waste during a calendar month to be excluded from full regulation under this
| section, the generator must comply with the requirements that include: |

a. Section 262.11 of this chapter;

b. The conditionally exempt small quantity generator may accumulate hazardous waste
on-site. If he accumulates at any time 1,000 kilogram;s or greater of his hazardous
wastes, all of those accumulated wastes are subject to regulation under the special
provisions of part 262 applicable to génerators of greater than 100 kg and less than
10 00 kg of hazardous waste in a calendar month as well as the requirements of parts
263 through 268, and parts 270 and 124 of this chapter, and the applicable
notification requirements of séction 3010 of RCRA.

62. Respondent was sforing hazardous waste in contﬁiners.

63. Respondeht does not have a RCRA permit or interim status.

© 64. Respondent failed to meet the fequirements set forth in this Count I.

- 65. Therefore, Respondent has violated Section 3005(a) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6925(a),
30 T.A.C. §§ 335.2 and 335.43 (40 C.F.R. §§ 270.1(c) & 270.10), which prohibits the
treatment, storage or disposal of hazardous waste without a permit or interim by operating a
hazardo-us waste storage facility without a permit or interim stafus. |

: COUNT II: FAILURE TO MAKE A HAZARDOUS WASTE DETERMINATION ON

'THE CONSOLIDATED RESIDUALS/HEELS CONTAINER WASTE, IN VIOLATION
OF 30 T:A.C. § 335.62 (40 CFR § 262.11)

66. Paragraphs 1 through 67 are hereby incorporated by reference. -
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67. Pursuant to 30 T.A.C. § 335.62 (40 CFR § 262.11),a person who generates a solid waste, as
defined in 40 CFR § 261.2, must determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using the
fbllowing method:

a. He should first determine if the waste is excluded from regulation under 40 C.F.R.
§261.4. |
b. He niust then determine if the waste is lisj:ed as a hazardous waste in subpart D of
40 C.F.R. Part 261.
B c. For purposes of compliance with 40 C.F.R. Part 268, or if the Wasté is not listed in
- Subpart D of 40 C.F.R. Part'261, the generator must then determine whether the
waste is identified in Subpart C of 40 C.F.R. Part 261 by either:
viii. Testing the _Waste according to the methods set forth in Subpart C of
40 C.F.R."Pal-rt 261, or according to an equivalent method approved by
the Administrafor under 40 C.F.R. § 260.21; or .
ix. Applying knowledge of the hazard characteristic of the waste in light of
the materials or the processes used.

68. Respondent generated a solid waste through the consolidation of received residuals/heel
wastes.'

69. Respondent did not make a hazardous waste determination by testing the waste according to
the methods set forth in Subpart C of 40 C.F.R. Part 261, or applying knowledge of the
hazard characteristic of the waste.

70. Therefore, Respondent violated 30 T.A.C. § 335.62 (40 CFR § 262.11), by not complying

with the requirements to make a hazardous waste determination.
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" COUNT III: FAILURE TO MAKE A HAZARDOUS WASTE DETERMINATION ON
THE FLOCCULANT WASTE AND SPENT COCONUT CARBON SHELL WASTE
GENERATED IN THE WASTEWATER SYSTEM, IN VIOLATION OF 30 T.A.C.

§ 335.62 (40 CFR § 262.11)

71, Paragraphs 1 through 72 are hereby incorporated by reference.

72. Pursuant to 30 T.A.C. § 335.62 (40 CFR § 262.1-1), a person who generates a solid waste, as
defined in 40 C.F.R. § 261.2, must determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using the
| following method:

a. He should first determine if the waste is excluded from regulation under 40 C.F.R.
§261.4.

b. He must then determine if the waste is listed as a hazardous waste in subpart D of
40 C.F.R. Part 261.

c. For purposes of comphance with 40 C.F.R. Part 268, or if the waste is not hsted in
Subpart D of 40 C.F.R. Part 261, the generator must then determine whether the
waste is identified in Subpart C of 40 CFR Part 261 by either:

i. Testing the waste according to the methods set forth in Subpart C of
40 CF.R. Pért 261, or acéording to an eéuivalent method approved by the
Administrator under 40 CFR § 260.21; or
ii. Applying knoWledge of the hazard characteristic of the waste in light of
the materials or the proceéses used.
73. Respondent generated a solid waste through the removal of th_e flocculent waste from its unit
in the.wastewater system. |
74. Respondent generated a éolid waste through the- removal of the spent coconut shell carbon

. from its unit in the wastewater system.
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75. Respondent did not make a hazardous waste detérmination of each solid waste stream at the
point of generation.
76. Therefore, Respondent violated 30 T.A.C. § 335.62 (40 CFR § 262.11), by not complying

with the requirements to make a hazardous waste determination.

. COUNTIV; FAILURE TO LABEL OR MARK CLEARLY A CONTAINER OF USED
" OIL WITH THE WORDS “USED OIL,” IN VIOLATION OF 30 T.A.C. § 324.6(40 C.F.R.
PART 279 SUBPART C § 279.22(¢))

77. Paragraphs 1 through 78 are hereby incorporated by reference.:
78. Pursuant to 30 T.A.C. § 324.6 (40 C.F.R. § 279.22(c)), used oil generators are subject to
_ meeting the used oil storage requirement of labeling or marking clearly containers used to
‘store used oil with the words “Used Oil.”

79. As defined in 30 T.A.C. § 324.2 (40 C.F.R. § 279.1), used oil means any oil that has been
refined from crude oil, or any synthetic oil, fhat hé.s been used and as a result of such use is
éontaminated by physical or chemical impurities.

80. As defined in 30 T.A.C. §'324.2(4O C.F.IR. § 279.1), a used oil generator means any person
by site, whose act or process produces used oil or whose act first causes used oil to become
'subject to regulation. |

81. Respondent did not label or clearly mark the words “Used Oil’ on a container holdiﬁg used
oil in the Maintenance Shop. |

82. Therefore, Respond¢nt violated 30 T.A.C. § 324.6( 40C.FR. § 279.22((:)), by failing to meet
the used oil storage requirement of labeling or marking clearly containers used to store used

oil with the words “Used Oil.”
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COMPLIANCE ORDER
Pursuant to Section 3008(a) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(;':1), Respondent is hereby
ORDERED to take the following actions, and submit any and all documents, photos, or other
appropriate evidence to EPA within the time period specified below, to adequately demonstrate
compliance.

A.. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Order, Respondent shall accurately
assess its monthly generation of hazardous waste and either modity its notification of
hazardous wasfe management activity or certify as to the accuracy of its current status
as a Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity Generator, whichever is appropriate.
Upon determination of its generator status, Respondent must cqmply with the
.appropriate requirements for hazardous waste generators.

B. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Order, Respondent shall také the
necessary stéps to ensure that the quantities of hazardous waste stored on site never
exceed the regulatqry limits imposed by RCRA.

C.: Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Order, Respondent shall take the
necessary steps to ensure that hazardous wastes are not stored on-site longer than the
regulatory limits imposed by RCRA.

D. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Order, Respondent shall take the
necéssary steps to ensure that containers storing hazardous waste are labele.d with the
words “Hazardous Waste,” marked with the date upon which ‘each period of

accumulation begins, and that the containers remain closed at all times, except when

adding and removing wastes.
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E. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Order, Respondent shall take the

necessary steps to ensure compliance with maintaining proper documentation of

personnel training at the facility.

. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Order, Respondent shall take the

necessary steps to ensure that hazardous waste storage arcas are inspected weekly.

. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Order, Réspondent shall take the

necessary steps to ensure that the facility is equipped with spill control equipment and

decontamination equipment.

.. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Order, Respbndent shall take the
necessary steps to ensure that communications or alarm systems, fire protection

" equipment, spill control equipment, and decontamination equipment, where required,

must be tested and maintained as necessary to assure its proper‘ operation in time of
emergency.
Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Order, Respondent shall take the

necessary steps to ensure that whenever hazardous waste is being poured, mixed,

-spread, or otherwise handled, all personnel involved in the operation must have

immediate access 10 an internal alarm or emergency communication device, either
directly or through visual or voice contact with another employee.

Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Order, Respondent shall take the
necessary steps to ensure that the owner or operator mainteﬁns aisle space to allow the
unob.structed movement of personnel, ﬁfe protection.equipment, spill control
equipment, and decontamination equipﬁlent to any area of facility operation in an

emergency.
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K. | Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Order, Respondent shall attempt to
maké arrangements with local authorities, as appropriate for the ﬁype of waste
handled at the facility and the potential need for the services of these organizations as
required under 30 T.A.C. § 335.112(a)(2)(40 C.F.R. § 265.37).

L. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Order, Respondent shall take the
necessary steps to develop a contingency plan for the facility. The contingency plan

; must be designed to minimize hazards t(;" human health and the environment from
fires, explosions, or any unplanned sudden or non-sudden release of hazardous waste
“or hazardous constitfuents to air, soil, or surface water. The contingency plan must
meet all requircments under 30 T.A.C. § 335.112(a)(3) (40 C.F.R. Part 265 Subpart
D). _

M. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Order, Respondent shall take the
necessary steps to ensure that hazardous waste determinations afe conducted on all
hazardous waste streams generated at the Facility. |

N. Within thirty (30) days of the effecﬁve date of this Order, Respondent shall take the
necessary steps to ensure that containers used to store used oil at the facility are
labeled or marked clearly with the words “Used Oil.”

0. in all instances in which this Order requires writfen submissions to EPA, each
submission mﬁst be accompanied by the fbllowing certiﬁcat_ion:

"I cértify that the information céntained in or accompanying this
submission is true, accurate and complete. Iam aware that there are

significant penalties for submitting false information, including the
possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations.”
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P. Copies of all documents required by this Complaint shall be sent to the following:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Compliance Assurance and Enforcement Division
Hazardous Waste Enforcement Branch
Compliance Enforcement Section (6EN-HE)
1445 Ross Avenue
Dallas, Texas 75202-2733
Attn: Gabriel Salinas
PENALTY/RESERVATION OF RIGHTS.

If Respondent fails to take the required actions within the time specified in this
Complaint, Respondent may be liable for a penalty of up to Thirty-Seven Thousand, Five
Hundred Dollars ($37,500) for each day of continued noncompliance pursuant to Section
3008(c) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(c), and may be subject to further enforcement action as
may be necessary to achieve compliance with RCRA. EPA further reserves its right to assess
penalties against Respondent related to the issues specifically addressed in this Complaint.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Complaint, an enforcement action may be
brought against the Respondent pursuant to Section 7003 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6973, or other
statutory authority, if EPA finds that the handling, storage, treatment, transportation or disposal

~ of solid waste or hazardous waste at the Facility presents an imminent and substantial

endangerment to human health or the environment.

NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY TO REQUEST A HEARING

If the Respondent wishes to contest any material fact set forth in the Complaint, contend
that the compliance order is inappropriate, or feels entitled to a judgment as a maiter of law, it

shall file an original and one copy of a written answer to this Complaint with the Regional
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Hearing Clerk within thirty (30) days after service of said Complaint, and serve a copy on all
other parties. A copy of the Answer shall also be sent to:
Tom Rucki _
Enforcement Counsel (6RC-ER)
U.S. EPA - Region 6
1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1200
Dallas, Texas 75202-2733
The Answer should clearly and directly admit, deny, or explain each factual allegation
contained in this Complaint with regard to ﬁﬁch the Respondent has knowledge. Where the
Respondent has no knowledge of a particular factual allegation and so s;cates, the allegation is
deemed denied. ‘The Answer should staté: (1) the circumstances or arguments which are alleged
to constitute the grouﬂds of defense; (2) the facts which the Respondent disputes; (3) the basis
fbr opposing any proposed relief; and (4) whether a hearing is requested. Hearings held on this |
will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Administrative Précedufes Act,
5 U.S.C. § 551 ef seq., and the Cor_lsolidated Rules of Practice, codiﬁed at 40 C.F.R. Part 22.
If an Answer to this Complaint is not filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk within thirty
(30) days of receipt, such failure shall (:(‘)nstitute. an admission of ali facts alleged in the
Complaint and a waiver of the Respond.ent’s right to a hearing. Pursuant to Section 3008(b) of
RCRA, 42 U.S.C..§ 6928(b) and 40 C.F.R. § 22.37(b), the Compliance Order becomes final
within thirty (3 0) days of receipt unless the Respondent requests a hearing.
" The Regional Hearing Clerk’s address is:
Ms. Lorena Vaughn
Regional Hearing Clerk (6RC-D)
U.S. EPA - Region 6

1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1200
Dallas, Texas 75202-2733
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SETTLEMENT CONFERENCE

Whether or not the Respondent requests a hearing, it may confer with the Complainant
concerning settlement. EPA encoﬁrages settlement consistent with the provisions and objectives
of RCRA and applicable regulations. A request for a settlement conference does not extend the
 thirty (30) day period during which the written Answer and a request for hearing must be
submitted. The settlement conference procedure may be pursued as an alternative to and
simultaneous with the formal hearing procedures. The Respondent rﬁay appear at the
settlement conference and/or be represented by counsel.

Any settlement reached by the parties shall be finalized upon the issuance of a written
Consent Agreement and Final Order by the Regional Judicial Officer, EPA-Region 6, in
accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.18. The issuance of a Consent Agreement and Final Order
shall constitute a waiyer of the Respondent’s right to request a hearing on any matter stipulated
to therein.

To explore the possibility of settlement in this maﬁer, please address correspondence 10
Tom Rucki and Gabriel Salinas, at the addresses listed above or by e-mail at

rucki.thomas@epa.gov and salinas.gabriel@epa.gov.

2. 2 . } 2~ BZ___
- Date. > Blevins . ‘
irector -
| B Compliance Assurance and

Enforcement Division
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| CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I hereby certify thatonthe __ day of , 2012, the original and one copy of
the foregoing Complaint was hand-delivered to the Regional Hearing Clerk, U.S. EPA-Region 6,
l1445 Ross Avénue, Dallas, Texas 75202-2733, and that a true and correct copy of the Complaint
was placed in the United States Mail, certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the

 following:




